
Date Published:9 April 2018     

Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board

Wednesday 11 April 2018 at 10.00 am

Headspace - The Growth Hub, Oxstalls Campus, Oxstalls Lane, 
Gloucester

1  WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Chair 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST Chair 

3  MINUTES OF MEETING ON 17 JANUARY 2018 (Pages 1 - 4) Chair 

4  ACTION LOG (Pages 5 - 24)

 Update on actions
 Dashboard

Pete Carr/
Kathryn 
Wagstaff

5  BUSINESS SKILLS SURVEY 

Initial findings and discussion - Andrew Engeli and Oliver Allies from 
Wavehill will present the headline findings from the survey.   

Katherine Martin from the Gloucestershire County Council Strategic 
Analysis Team in attendance for this item 

Wavehill 

6  APPRENTICESHIPS 

Preparation for focus on this at the next meeting.   Clare Wilson will join 
the meeting to update members on the GOAL project 

Pete Carr/Clare 
Wilson 

7  ANY OTHER BUSINESS All 

8  DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 11 JULY 2018 All 

http://www.achieveyourgoal.org.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
Minutes of GESB meeting on 17 January 2018  1 

 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS BOARD  

Minutes of the meeting held at 10am on Wednesday 17 January 2018 at 

The Growth Hub, Oxstalls Campus, Oxstalls Lane, Gloucester 

 

Present: 

Rebekka Bishop Clare Marchant 
Matthew Burgess Russell Marchant 
Peter Carr (Adviser) Anne Stokes (from 1030) 
Michael Carter Councillor Lynden Stowe 
Catherine Coughlan Kathryn Wagstaff (Adviser) 
Jason Dunsford  Sara-Jane Watkins  
Julia Falaki  
Pauline Hartree (Clerk)  
Andrew Kirk (Vice Chair and Chair for this  
Meeting) 

Andrew Lloyd (guest) from 1100 

Councillor Steve Lydon  
 

Apologies:  Linsey Temple, Shaun Clee 

 

1 Welcome and introductions  

Andrew Kirk (Vice Chair and Chair for this meeting) welcomed Clare Marchant to the Board.  Clare is 
the new Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board Chair and will chair the next meeting on 11 April 
2018. 
 

2 Declarations of interest 
 
 Matthew Burgess declared an interest in Institutes of Technology should the topic arise. 

 
3 Minutes of meeting on 4 October 2017 and action log  

 
The minutes of the meeting on 4 October 2017 were accepted as an accurate record. 
 
Comments and updates on the action log:  
 

 Item 2:  Priorities and Work Plan – data:  It was suggested that other LEP groups could provide 
data.  Kathryn Wagstaff reported that the new Gloucestershire Economic Intelligence working 
group that will help to collect and coordinate information and data. 
  

 Item 4:  Priorities and Work Plan – Business Survey/Brexit:  Kathryn Wagstaff updated the meeting 
on the scope and size of the survey.  It is targeted at 1200 businesses in the county which is 
designed to be a representative sample.   The last business survey was undertaken in the 1990s.   
Headline findings from the survey will be reported at the April meeting.   
 

 Item 6:  Priorities and Work Plan – Skills Budget Devolution:  In answer to a question from Clare 
Marchant, Pete Carr reported that he understands that devolution is on hold in Gloucestershire.   
There is a ‘watching brief’ on progress in areas that already have devolution deals such as West of 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

 
 
Minutes of GESB meeting on 17 January 2018  2 

 

England and Greater Manchester.   Sara-Jane Watkins updated the Board on latest information – 
the plan is for West of England to have a shadow year in 2018/19 for its devolution of Adult 
Education Budget with go live in 2019/20.   Councillor Lynden Stowe suggested that from a 
strategic point of view Gloucestershire needs to align with Midlands and Oxford/Milton 
Keynes/Cambridge as well as Bristol.  

 

 Item 10: Industrial Strategy:   Pete Carr reported that there is more information due to come out 
from central Government.  Funding around this is still unclear.   

 
4 Priorities and work plan – proposed actions 

 
Pete Carr introduced his paper and asked that the Board agree whether these are the priorities and 
actions of this group.   The following comments were made: 
 

 Stronger links between schools and businesses – it was suggested this should also include 
colleges 

 Councillor Steve Lydon suggested that the focus of the Board should be on producing the skills 
section of the Industrial Strategy 

 Members feel that this Board has a role in finding out from schools what they are currently doing 
and if there is an appetite for industry to work more closely with schools and the wider community. 

 The work of the Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board needs to have profile  

 Concern that there are too many priorities but it was agreed the Board needs to start somewhere 
so the proposed four priorities were confirmed as the starting point.   
 

Kathryn Wagstaff presented a suggested dashboard of information, based on the priorities and KPIs, 
together with other relevant, helpful and available data sourced from local and national datasets.   It 
was agreed that the dashboard would provide valuable initial data which can be refined at a later 
stage. 
 
Kathryn will update the dashboard following the comments of Board Members and circulate for final 
comments, and will complete the dashboard as much as possible for the next meeting.  
 

5 Careers Strategy 
 
 Members welcomed Andrew Lloyd to the meeting to give some insight in to the recently published 

Careers Strategy.   He circulated summary/key points from both the Careers Strategy and the newly 
published ‘Careers guidance and access for education and training providers – statutory guidance’,  
Andrew works at Prospects – provider of careers information, advice and guidance – and is employed 
as a Careers Advisor and Coordinator at a Gloucestershire school. 

 
Main discussion points were as follows: 
 

 Focus is to use careers guidance to drive social mobility 

 GATSBY benchmarks to be used by all schools 

 Use of quality awards – expensive in time and commitment, but valuable as a framework  

 Appointment of careers leaders – varies from school to school  

 Anne Stokes reported that there are almost as many models for delivery of careers education and 
information and guidance as there are schools 

 Very few local authority secondary schools, with the local authority having no influence on 
academies/independent schools which number 39 

Page 2



 

 
 
Minutes of GESB meeting on 17 January 2018  3 

 

 Challenge of encouraging young people to return to Gloucestershire after going to university 
outside the county 

 Anne Stokes will ensure that Heads are aware of the new statutory guidance and open dialogue 
between the Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board and the heads so that they can work 
collaboratively. 
 

Members agreed that it is important for the Board to proactively engage with Heads/Principals to share 
the Board’s purpose and priorities with a view to building relationships before requesting information 
and data.  
 
Pete Carr explained that Local Enterprise Adviser Networks were central to the delivery of the new 
Careers Strategy and that GFirst LEP was currently employing a team of three staff to manage the 
network and coordinate links between schools and businesses.   He reported that two of the three staff 
had just resigned and this had prompted GFirst LEP to review options for the work of the team.  He 
would welcome dialogue with any GESB members about possible solutions. 
 

6 Any other business 
 
 There was no other business 
 
7 Date and time of the next meeting 
 
 The next meeting is at 10am on Wednesday 11 April 2018 at The Growth Hub, Oxstalls Campus, 

Oxstalls Lane, Gloucester. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



1   GESB Action Log 

   Updated April 2018 

 

Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board  
 

Action Log – updated April 2018 
 

 
No. 

 
Topic 

 

 
Action 

 
Responsibility 

 
Progress 

 
1 
 
 

 
Priorities and Work Plan: 
Industrial Strategy 

 
Pete to invite GFirst LEP lead for the Industrial Strategy to 
attend the next appropriate Board meeting to explain the 
approach to be taken. 
 

 
Pete Carr 

 
Discussed with GFirst LEP CEO and 
DCEO but postponed until clear 
guidance issued by Government on the 
contents of local industrial strategies. 
 

 
2 
 
 

 
Priorities and Work Plan: 
Business Survey 

 
Headline results to be reported to the 11 April 2018 
meeting 

 
Pete Carr 
Kathryn Wagstaff 
 

 
Andrew Engeli and Oliver Allies from 
Wavehill will attend meeting on 11 April 
2018 to present headline results of the 
Business Skills survey  
 

 
3 

 
Priorities and Work Plan: 
Skills Budget Devolution  
 
 

 
Pete Carr to talk to Mike Dawson, Tewkesbury Borough 
Council CEO about recruitment of cross-authority planning 
lead.   
 
Pete to keep Board updated on devolution of skills budget 
in other devolution areas via the LEP Skills Leads meetings 
and network. 
 

 
Pete Carr 

 
Local authority planning lead being 
recruited. Pete to confirm start date 
when confirmed. 
 
No further update from previous 
meeting. 

 
4 

 
Priorities and Work Plan:  
Data 

 
Kathryn Wagstaff to circulate link to Inform which enables 
users to access, compare and analyse local authority date 
 

 
Kathryn Wagstaff 

 
Link to Inform circulated with notes of 
meeting of 17 January 2018 

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 4



2   GESB Action Log 

   Updated April 2018 

 

 

 
No. 

 
Topic 

 

 
Action 

 
Responsibility 

 
Progress 

 
5 
 

 
Priorities and Work Plan 

 
All members to feed back to Pete Carr by Monday 19 
February 2018 any additional actions or amendments to 
actions for the priorities and work plan 

 
All board members 

 
Feedback received and incorporated. 
Updated version circulated with papers 
for April 2018 meeting. 
 

 
6 

 
Priorities and Work Plan:  
dashboard 

 
Kathryn Wagstaff to circulate dashboard template for 
comment with a view to sign off at meeting on 11 April 
2018 
 

 
Kathryn Wagstaff 

 
Kathryn to discuss at the March board 
meeting. 

 
7 
 
 

 
Priorities and Work Plan: 
Actions  
 

 
Pete Carr to coordinate actions shown in the work plan 
and report on progress at future meetings 

 
Pete Carr 

 
Pete to report on actions from July 2018 
meeting. 

 
8 

 
Priorities and Work Plan: 
Lobbying 

 
Pete to invite Gloucestershire MPs to meet with the Board 
once priorities and work plan are further developed and 
the Board is clear about its key messages to MPs 
 

 
Pete Carr 

 
Likely to be September 2018 meeting  

 
9 

 
Careers Strategy 
 

 
Anne Stokes to attend Heads’ meeting and invite 
representatives of the GESB to meet with secondary 
school heads to progress the Careers Strategy 
 

 
Anne Stokes  

 
Pete hoped to attend March GASH 
meeting but unable to attend because 
of family illness. Pete and Clare to 
attend future meeting/s as invited by 
Anne. 
 

P
age 6



3   GESB Action Log 

   Updated April 2018 

 

 

 
No. 

 
Topic 

 

 
Action 

 
Responsibility 

 
Progress 

 
10 

 
Careers Strategy:  research 
 

 
Kathryn Wagstaff to research – via school websites and 
EDGE project report/feedback – what range/level of 
careers guidance is provided by academies/independent 
school. 
 

 
Kathryn Wagstaff 

 
Statutory obligation has only just been 
issued to schools. Kathryn will follow up 
before the July meeting and do a 
complete audit of which are providing a 
careers strategy, identified careers lead 
and working with Enterprise Advisers 
and Governors links with businesses. 

 
11 

  
Careers Strategy:  Local 
Enterprise Adviser Networks 
Recruitment 

 
GESB members to contact Pete Carr about 
support/resource options for the coordination of the 
Gloucestershire Enterprise Adviser Network 
 

 
Board Members 

 
No contact from Board members by end 
of March 2018. New staff recruited as 
Enterprise Co-Ordinators and regular 
update/good practice sharing meetings 
with Enterprise Advisers taking place. 
 

 

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 11 

Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board 

Priorities and proposed actions – March 2018 

This document is intended to reflect the priorities that Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board (GESB) 

members and other stakeholders have identified for the Board and to confirm actions to be taken against each 

priority.  This document will be reviewed regularly during the lifetime of the GESB and actions will be added or 

amended as required. 

1. Confirmed priorities 

1.1 Apprenticeships 
 

1.2 Ageing workforce and dealing with replacement demand 
 
1.3 Stronger links between schools, colleges and businesses 
 
1.4 Improved, impartial careers support for schools and colleges based on accurate and up-to-date Labour 

Market Information 
 
 

1.1 Apprenticeships 

 
1.1.1 Background: Expansion of apprenticeship opportunities in the county has been a long-standing priority for 
both GFirst LEP and Gloucestershire County Council. The Strategic Economic Plan for Gloucestershire and the ESIF 
Strategy (add links) both support the expansion of apprenticeships in the County.  
 
1.1.2 Baseline data: This is sourced from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) via its ‘localities cube’. 
2015/16 data is included in the GESB Evidence Base pages 27-28.  
 
1.1.3 Monitoring: This will be done through the ESFA localities cube, monitored by GCC Skills and Employment 
Commissioning Team staff. There has also been a request for informal management information from 
apprenticeship providers to show progress ahead of the reporting cycle via ESFA. 
 
1.1.4 Possible KPIs: Number of apprenticeship starts (including engineering apprenticeships); number of 
apprenticeship completions (including engineering apprenticeships); Number of businesses advertising 
apprenticeship opportunities 
 
1.1.5 Routes to achieving the KPIs: Better information into schools to enable informed choice by students; having 
a local 'hub' for businesses wanting to know how apprenticeships work and what is available and individuals 
seeking apprenticeships to get connected with apprenticeship opportunities; up-to-date information about which 
apprenticeships are available in Gloucestershire and how many of each type are being delivered and by whom 
 
1.1.6 Key providers: Clarify with GWP, GOAL project and via Data Cube (colleges and private training providers) – 
need breakdown of volumes and types of apprenticeships delivered by each provider 
 
1.1.7 Resource challenges/issues: Currently, there is no specific, dedicated, permanent resource available within 
the county to manage work with schools and employers to promote apprenticeships and work with providers and 
the National Apprenticeship Service.  South Gloucestershire and Stroud College has secured a £1.7 European Social 
Fund (ESF) project to increase apprenticeship promotion and delivery in the County but this is restricted in terms 
of eligible participants and in time, as the project only started in September 2017 and needs to be completed by 
July 2018. GCC is exploring the opportunity to second a member of staff to support county-wide work on 
apprenticeships as well as co-ordinating GCC’s own apprenticeship provision and levy usage. 
 

Page 9



Page 2 of 11 

1.1.8 Good practice already identified: mapping of apprenticeship provision across Gloucestershire (and Swindon 
& Wiltshire) by GWP 
 
1.1.9 Relevant projects/initiatives to highlight to GESB: GCC apprenticeship taskforce – historical report; pre-
apprenticeship clearing house project initiated by GCC with Prospect – no report but worth following up; new 
£1.7m ESF apprenticeship support programme led by South Gloucestershire and Stroud College now contracted 
but reduced from a 3 year project to less than 1year so targets very challenging; Apprenticeship S K ESFA project 
for promoting apprenticeships in schools plus offer from GWP to undertake promotional work with schools. 
 
Proposed Actions: Apprenticeships 
 

Ref Topic Action Who When Priority RAG 
rating on 
progress 

GESB involvement/ 
action 

Notes 

1.1.1 Baseline data Confirm latest 
apprenticeship 
delivery data to 
GESB 

GCC 11/04/18 H Red Review baseline 
data and agree 
targets/KPIs 
 

 

1.1.2 Monitoring Review latest 
apprenticeship 
delivery data at 
each GESB meeting 

GESB 
members 

11/04/18 H Red Review latest 
apprenticeship 
delivery data at 
each GESB meeting 
and make 
recommendations 
for improvements. 

 

1.1.3 Targets/KPIs Set and 
communicate 
targets/KPIs for 
apprenticeship 
delivery 

GESB 
members 

11/04/18 H Red Set and 
communicate 
targets/KPIs for 
apprenticeship 
delivery to 
apprenticeship 
providers and ESFA. 

Consider 
setting targets 
for type and 
level of 
apprenticeshi
ps 

1.1.4  Co-ordination of 
apprenticeships 

Recruit/second 
staff member to co-
ordinate 
apprenticeship 
provision within 
GCC and county-
wide 

GCC 31/03/18 H Amber Confirm reporting 
arrangements 
required by GESB 

 

1.1.5 Apprenticeship 
offer 

Confirm current 
apprenticeship 
offer in the county 
and update at 
regular intervals 

SGS 
College 
leading 
GOAL 
project 
 

11/04/18 H Green Confirm offer 
information is 
appropriate 

 

Page 10



Page 3 of 11 

 

Ref Topic Action Who When Priority RAG 
rating on 
progress 

GESB involvement/ 
action 

Notes 

1.1.6 Apprenticeship 
offer 

Identify and report 
to GESB on gaps in 
provision based on 
contact from local 
businesses 

SGS 
College 
leading 
GOAL 
project 
 

11/07/18 
and then 
at 
subseque
nt 
meetings 

M Amber   

1.1.7 Promotion of 
apprenticeships 

Emphasise to 
secondary schools 
the requirement to 
promote/enable 
promotion of 
apprenticeships 
 

GCC 31/03/18 H Red Note 
communication and 
responses from 
schools 

 

1.1.8 Promotion of 
apprenticeships 
 

Engage the 
Apprenticeship 
Support & 
Knowledge for 
schools (ASK) 
project to improve 
promotion of 
apprenticeships in 
schools 
 

GCC 31/03/18 H Green Note ASK action 
plan and responses 
from schools 

 

1.1.9 
 

Promotion of 
apprenticeships 
 

Review the impact 
of the ASK project 

GCC Date tbc 
with the 
ASK 
project 
 

M Red Receive and review 
impact report from 
ASK project 
 

 

1.1.10 Further support 
for 
apprenticeships 
 

Review lessons 
learned and 
proposals for 
sustainability of 
apprenticeship 
support in the 
county prepared by 
GOAL project 
 

SGS as 
GOAL 
project 
lead, 
GFirst 
LEP, 
GESB 
members 

March 
2019 – 
date tbc 
to fit 
with 
reporting 
to LEP 
and ESFA 

H Red   

1.1.11 Incorporation of 
apprenticeships 
into local 
infrastructure/ 
development 
sites 
 

Identify good 
practice in the 
incorporation of 
apprenticeships 
into local 
infrastructure/ 
development sites 
in other areas and 
share findings with 
GFirst LEP, GCC, 
District Councils, 
University of 
Gloucestershire 

GCC 11/07/18 M Red   

 

Page 11



Page 4 of 11 

1.2 Ageing workforce and dealing with replacement demand  
 
1.2.1 Background: Many local and national businesses across several sectors have an ageing workforce and are 
experiencing the loss of knowledge and skills as older staff retire. In some cases, this knowledge and these skills 
are not being effectively transferred to younger members of the workforce. In other cases, businesses need to 
enable older workers to work more flexibly in order to retain them for longer. Some work on this has been done 
with larger national/multi-national companies but comparatively little has been done with SMEs and obviously, 
SMEs make up the vast majority (98% of Gloucestershire businesses). 
 
1.2.2 Baseline data: None currently but relevant questions built into business skills survey led by GCC. 
 
1.2.3 Monitoring: Via survey responses from businesses and monitoring longitudinal changes 
 
1.2.4 Possible KPIs: Businesses with schemes in place to retain older workers; Businesses with programmes in 
place to transfer knowledge and skills from older workers 
 
1.2.5 Routes to achieving the KPIs: project to identify and share good practice with local businesses about how to 
retain experience within the organisation (e.g. flexible working, mentoring, etc.), implementation of succession 
planning and knowledge transfer from experienced workers to younger, less experienced ones; ways of ensuring 
local training providers work effectively with local businesses to upskill and retrain the existing workforce 
 
1.2.6 Key providers: Not yet known. There may be SMEs in Gloucestershire that have flexible working 
arrangements in place to enable older workers to stay on – these businesses need to be identified and key lessons 
learned and shared. Similarly, there may be SMEs that have effective succession planning and knowledge transfer 
arrangements in place. Again, these businesses need to be identified and key lessons learned and shared. 
 
1.2.7 Resource challenges/issues: No group organisation currently resourced to undertake the proposed follow-on 
work from the business skills survey but GFirst LEP and GCC well positioned to undertake this work as links have 
already been made with the DWP Fuller Working Lives team. 
 
1.2.8 Good practice already identified: Fuller Working Lives project managed by DWP – examples from national 
employers and data. DWP willing to provide some additional information/support for this via the Fuller Working 
Lives team. 
 
1.2.9 Relevant projects/initiatives to highlight to GESB: Fuller Working Lives project managed by DWP 
  
Proposed actions: Ageing workforce and dealing with replacement demand 
 

Ref Topic Action Who When Priority RAG 
rating 
on 
progress 

GESB 
involvement/acti
on 

Notes 

1.2.1 Baseline data Confirm findings 
about ageing and 
retiring workforce 
from business skills 
survey 
 

GCC and 
Wavehill 

11/07/18 H Green Review findings 
about ageing and 
retiring workforce 
from business 
skills survey and 
propose actions 
 

 

1.2.2 Targets/KPIs Set appropriate 
targets/KPIs for this 
area of work 
 

GESB 
members 

11/07/18 H Red Set appropriate 
targets/KPIs for 
this area of work 
 

 

Page 12



Page 5 of 11 

 

1.2.3 Good practice Identify local 
businesses with 
effective 
knowledge transfer 
arrangements in 
place 
 

Growth 
Hub and 
GFirst 
LEP 

11/07/18 M Red Review good 
practice identified 
and make 
recommendations 
for sharing and 
promoting 

 

1.2.4 Good practice Identify local 
businesses with 
effective flexible 
working 
arrangements for 
older staff 

Growth 
Hub and 
GFirst 
LEP 

11/07/18 M Red Review good 
practice identified 
and make 
recommendations 
for sharing and 
promoting 

 

1.2.5 Good practice Ask DWP Fuller 
Working Lives team 
to share good 
practice identified 
nationally 
 

GCC 28/02/18 H Amber Review good 
practice identified 
and make 
recommendations 
for sharing and 
promoting 
 

 

1.2.6 Good practice Ask GESB members 
to identify and 
collate good 
practice they use 
within their own 
organisations re. 
knowledge transfer 
and flexible 
working for older 
workers 

GESB 
members 

28/02/18 M Red Identify and 
collate good 
practice 

 

 
1.3 Stronger links between schools, colleges and businesses  
 
1.3.1 Background: This has been a priority for GFirst LEP for several years and is included in the Strategic Economic 
Plan. It also features strongly in the ‘Careers strategy: making the most of everyone’s skills and talents’ published 
by DfE in December 2017. The intentions of building stronger links between schools and local businesses include: 
engaging students in what local businesses do so they can be informed about possible career paths; provide more 
informed careers choices; assisting in reducing exclusion rates for disengaged students. The current pattern of 
work in this area is complex, partly because of the number of academies in the county and partly because of the 
range of different organisations undertaking this work e.g. GFirst LEP, schools and colleges making their own 
arrangements for local business links, Stroud District Council have set up and are running a ‘Skills for Stroud 
Employability Charter’. Please also see pages 29-30 in the GESB Evidence Base. 
 
1.3.2 Baseline data: Not yet confirmed. The picture is complex as GFirst LEP Education Team is currently working 
with 18 secondary schools and colleges in the County where they have already secured the services of Enterprise 
Advisers (EAs) and a further 17 schools to get EAs in place. Audits of business engagement are carried out with 
these schools and colleges. Other schools and colleges have developed their own links with local businesses and 
currently there isn’t an established way of finding out what these are. 
 
1.3.3 Monitoring: Via audit of schools and colleges by the GFirst LEP Education team and EAN data from GFirst LEP 
Education Team 
 

Page 13



Page 6 of 11 

1.3.4 Possible KPIs: Number and location of schools matched with Enterprise Advisers; Number of careers 
teachers/leads informed by local labour market information (e.g. workshops run, downloads of sector reports, 
etc.); Number of schools and colleges offering work experience to students 
 
1.3.5 Routes to achieving the KPIs: Expansion of the Enterprise Adviser Network across all secondary schools and 
colleges in Gloucestershire; regular updates and liaison with school careers teachers; sharing lessons learned 
through the ESF-funded EDGE project delivered by South Gloucestershire and Stroud College (see below). 
 
1.3.6 Key providers: GFirst LEP Education Team; school careers teachers/leads; GCC and Strategic Alliance labour 
market information; Stroud District Council’s team working on the ‘Skills for Stroud’ Employability Charter Mark; 
Prospects; South Gloucestershire and Stroud College’s EDGE project reports and resource materials for improving 
work experience. 
 
1.3.7 Resource challenges/issues: GFirst LEP Education Team have secured a grant from the Careers & Enterprise 
Company to continue working to expand the Enterprise Adviser Network to all schools and colleges in 
Gloucestershire but this requires 50% cash match funding and this has only been secured for the year commencing 
September 2017. Without this cash match the programme is at risk and yet it is central to the delivery of the 
national Careers Strategy. The GESB is requested to suggest possible sources of cash match for this programme. 
Similarly, resource pressures on local authorities are requiring Stroud District Council to make cost and efficiency 
savings which in turn may impact on the Employability Charter Mark work. Conversely, if funding can be secured, 
Stroud DC would be willing to expand this programme across the County in order to build on the success of this 
programme in Stroud District. 
 
1.3.8 Good practice already identified: Careers & Enterprise Company (general and Enterprise adviser pathways); 
‘register’ of local and national enterprise support providers and provision prepared by GFirst LEP Education Team; 
impartial careers advice provided by SGS College and bought in by some schools in the county 
 
1.3.9 Relevant projects/initiatives to highlight to GESB: EAN Network and more general work of the GFirst LEP 
Education Team and Careers and enterprise company: EDGE Project led by SGS College; DWP work with schools; 
GFirst LEP, schools and colleges making their own arrangements for local business links, Stroud District Council 
have set up and are running a ‘Skills for Stroud Employability Charter’ 
 
Proposed actions: Stronger links between schools and businesses 
 

Ref Topic Action Who When Priority RAG 
rating 
on 
progress 

GESB 
involvement/ 
action 

Notes 

1.3.1 Enterprise 
Adviser 
Network 
(Careers 
Enterprise 
Company 
contract) 

Review 
management and 
delivery 
arrangements for 
CEC contract in 
Gloucestershire 
and make 
recommendations 
to GFirst LEP senior 
management and 
CEC 
 

GFirst 
LEP 

10/02/18 H Amber Note review 
findings and 
advise GFirst LEP 
senior managers 

 

Page 14



Page 7 of 11 

 

1.3.2 Employability 
charter for 
employers 
 

Review the costs 
and benefits of the 
Stroud District 
Council-led ‘Skills 
for Stroud 
Employability 
Charter’ and 
identify resources 
required to 
continue/expand 
the programme if 
appropriate. 

GESB 
members 

11/07/18 H Amber   

1.3.3 Digital access to 
careers 
information 

Review digital 
careers information 
being used by 
schools in 
Gloucestershire 
and explore new 
opportunities for 
this (e.g. Impart IQ 
app) 
 

Gfirst 
LEP, 
schools 
and 
careers 
providers 

30/10/18 M Red Review findings 
and make 
recommendations 
including funding 
sources for digital 
tools 

 

1.3.4 Business 
expectations of 
students 
 

Review findings of 
the EDGE project 
and disseminate to 
schools and 
colleges 
 

GCC and 
GFirst 
LEP 

30/09/18 H Green Review findings 
and make 
recommendations 

 

1.3.5 Work 
experience 
 

Review findings of 
the T-Levels 
preparation pilot 
funded by ESFA 
 

Gloucest
ershire 
College 
and SGS 
College 
 

31/12/18 H Amber Review findings 
and make 
recommendations 

 

1.3.6 Careers Hub 
 

Review bid criteria 
for a Careers hub 
from the Careers & 
Enterprise 
Company and 
prepare a local bid 
is appropriate. 
 

GFirst 
LEP and 
GCC 

Bid 
deadline 
tbc by 
Careers & 
Enterprise 
Company 

M Red Support bid if 
appropriate 

 

1.3.7 STEM  Map uptake of 
STEM qualifications 
in Gloucestershire  
 

GFirst 
LEP and 
GCC with 
Glos 
STEM 
network 

30/10/18 M Red Review findings 
and make 
recommendations 

 

Page 15



Page 8 of 11 

1.3.8 STEM Review existing 
Government 
initiatives such as 
STEM Learning and 
NSC Cyber School 
Hub to identify 
lessons learned for 
Gloucestershire 

GFirst 
LEP and 
GCC with 
Glos 
STEM 
network 
 

30/10/18 M Red Review findings 
and make 
recommendations 

 

 
  
1.4 Improved, impartial careers support for schools and colleges based on 
accurate and up-to-date Labour Market Information 

 
1.4. 1 Background: Effective and consistent careers information, advice and guidance (IAG) has been a long-term 
priority for GFirst LEP and GCC and was included in discussions with Government as part of the Gloucestershire 
devolution bid. It is a statutory requirement for schools to provide impartial careers guidance but there is a huge 
disparity in what schools are providing.  Provision can range between schools employing a sole trading careers 
adviser to minimal compliance such as arranging visits to employers and/or mock interviews. It is up to a school’s 
governing body to decide what is in their students’ best interests in terms of careers interventions. There are 
quality standards which schools are encouraged to comply with, such as using a qualified practitioner but provision 
is very varied; in some schools a teaching member of staff is given responsibility for careers guidance provision.  
Different schools value careers guidance differently and there is a difference between careers education – which 
normally sits within the PSHE timetable – and careers advice and guidance. Careers guidance is part of OFSTED 
inspections but pretty low key, although more rigour is planned in future. Please also see pages 29-30 in the GESB 
Evidence Base. 
 
1.4.2 Baseline data: Requires further research and guidance from GESB members. 
 
1.4.3 Monitoring: Requires further research and guidance from GESB members. 
 
1.4.4 Possible KPIs: Number of careers teachers/leads informed by local labour market information (e.g. 
workshops run, downloads of sector reports, etc.). Requires further research and guidance from GESB members. 
 
1.4.5 Routes to achieving the KPIs: Work with current careers and IAG support providers (e.g. Adviza, Prospects, 
South Gloucestershire and Stroud College, etc.) and careers teachers in schools (e.g. via the Careers and 
Employability Group) to audit/map careers support in schools and ways in which this could be strengthened, e.g. 
through improved Labour Market Information (LMI), regular updates and continuing professional development 
(CPD) sessions for careers teachers. 
 

1.4.6 Key providers: Adviza - http://www.adviza.org.uk/ holds the National Careers Service contract for 
Gloucestershire and is currently in discussion with GFirst LEP’s Education Team about delivery in schools in 
Gloucestershire , Prospects - https://youthsupportteam.co.uk/services/careers-advice-plus - have 6 contracts 
across the county’s schools, South Gloucestershire and Stroud College runs SGS Schools' Careers Service to provide 
impartial careers services to schools/clusters of schools. 
 
1.4.7 Resource challenges/issues: Limited and decreasing school budgets and school careers leads with other, 
wider teaching and management responsibilities can limit the breadth and depth of careers support available to 
some students. 
 
1.4.8 Good practice already identified: twice annual meetings of the Careers and Employability Group of school 
careers and employability leads – an effective network to share good practice. 
 
1.4.9 Relevant projects/initiatives to highlight to the GESB: Further research required. 

Page 16



Page 9 of 11 

Proposed actions: Improved, impartial careers support for schools based on accurate and up-to-date Labour 
Market Information 
 

Ref Topic Action Who When Priority RAG 
rating 
on 
progress 

GESB 
involvement/ 
action 

Notes 

1.4.1 Schools careers 
leads network 

Review objectives 
and resource 
requirements for 
school careers 
leads network and 
make 
recommendations 
to GCC and GFirst 
LEP senior 
management 
 

GFirst 
LEP 
and 
GCC 

11/07/18 M Red Contribute to the 
review and make 
recommendations 
to GFirst LEP and 
GCC senior 
managers 

 

1.4.2 Schools careers 
support 

Map careers 
support providers 
operating across 
the schools in 
Gloucestershire 
 

GFirst 
LEP 
and 
GCC 

11/07/18 M Amber Review mapping 
of careers support 
and make 
recommendations 

 

1.4.3 School careers 
support 

Review how 
Gloucestershire 
schools perform 
currently against 
the Gatsby 
Benchmarks 
 

GFirst 
LEP 
and 
GCC 

31/05/18 M Amber Review findings 
and make 
recommendations 
to relevant 
organisations 
including schools, 
multi-academy 
trusts, GFirst LEP, 
GCC, Careers & 
Enterprise 
Company 
 

 

1.4.4 Local labour 
market 
information 

Review findings of 
business skills 
survey and include 
findings in LMI for 
schools 
 

GCC 30/09/18 H Green Review findings 
and key messages 
to stakeholders 

 

1.4.5 Local labour 
market 
information 
 

Review 
employment and 
skills findings 
included in District 
Council local 
strategies/economi
c development 
plans and provide 
key messages to 
schools and 
colleges 

GCC 30/09/18 M Amber Review findings 
and key messages 
to stakeholders 

 

Page 17



Page 10 of 11 

 

1.4.6 Local labour 
market 
information 

Review findings of 
EDGE project and 
include findings in 
LMI for schools 
 

GCC 
and 
GFirst 
LEP 

30/09/18 H Green Review findings 
and key messages 
to stakeholders 

 

1.4.7 Local labour 
market 
information 

Update and 
promote the sector 
reports prepared 
by GCC 
 

GCC 31/03/18 M Green Review sector 
reports and test 
these against 
GFirst LEP 
business group 
knowledge and 
refine accordingly. 
 

 

 

2. Additional requirements of the GESB 

2.1 Planning for employment and skills demands post-Brexit  

There is an expectation on the GESB to be forward-looking and to help the County plan for the post-Brexit period. 

As discussed with the GESB in induction sessions, the GESB Evidence Base incorporates data that is pre-Brexit and 

the expectation is that patterns of employment and skills demands will change substantially post-Brexit. The GESB 

therefore needs to function partly as a ‘post-Brexit think tank’ and to prepare plans for the County’s employment 

and skills needs into the future.  

Growth Hub staff should be asked to gather and feed into the Growth Hub CRM system the likely employment and 

skills needs of local businesses. The GESB needs to put time and resource into this as the ‘thought leaders’ for the 

county on the employment and skills impacts of Brexit. It was agreed by GESB members to keep the emerging 

implications of Brexit on the agenda for GESB meetings so that these could be highlighted at each meeting. 

Additionally, any implications of Brexit identified through the business skills survey will be incorporated into the 

survey feedback to GESB members. 

2.2 Industrial Strategy  

It has been agreed with the GFirst LEP Board that the employment and skills priorities for the county will be 

developed by GESB members and incorporated into the Gloucestershire Industrial Strategy. There would also be 

value in having a version of this that could be used independently of the Industrial Strategy. The timelines for this 

are currently being clarified and the work on the Industrial Strategy as a whole will be led by GFirst LEP. Pete Carr 

will work with GESB members and Gfirst LEP co-ordinate the employment and skills section of the Strategy.  To 

date, Gfirst LEP is waiting for further guidance from Government about what is required in the local Industrial 

Strategy submissions. Once this is known, GESB members will be informed. 

2.3 Careers Strategy  

This was published in December 2017 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/careers-strategy-making-the-

most-of-everyones-skills-and-talents and several aspects of it fit closely with the priorities identified by the GESB. 

The strategy will therefore be considered as part of the workplan for the GESB, particularly in relation to priorities 

1.3 and 1.4 (Stronger links between businesses and schools and Improved impartial careers support for schools 

based on accurate and up-to-date Labour Market Information and has been included in the agenda for the January 

2018 meeting. 

Page 18



Page 11 of 11 

2.4 Institute of Technology proposals and selection  

Following the initial submissions from bidders at the end of October 2017, Government  published a prospectus for 

IoTs on 30th November 2017 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/institutes-of-technology-prospectus 

that includes information about the two-stage process that will result in the selection of the Institutes of 

Technology.  

GFirst LEP Board has the expectation that any bidders wishing to progress through the two-stage selection process 

are willing to work collaboratively with Gfirst LEP and share their emerging plans and proposals with the LEP. The 

timescales for submission are tight and strong Higher Education, Further Education and employer involvement is 

expected to be demonstrated in the bids. GFirst LEP is also working collaboratively with Swindon & Wiltshire LEP 

on a possible IoT bid that would encompass both LEP areas.  

2.5 Future skills capital bids through Local growth fund  

There is no further information on this at the moment as the focus is on funding post-Brexit rather than on the 

single local growth fund. Civil servants are working on proposals for a UK shared prosperity fund that will follow-on 

from the local growth fund. More details will be shared with the GESB when they become available. Until that 

point, there currently is not a skills capital fund for local providers to bid into. 

2.6 Prioritisation of post-ESF employment and skills priorities  

There is very limited information on this at present but there is ongoing liaison with ESFA and DWP on this to find 

out more. Pete Carr has meetings with the DWP Managing Authority in February when this topic will be discussed. 

2.7 Planning for devolution of Adult Education Budget  

Essentially the Gloucestershire devolution bid has stalled because Government is focusing on existing and further 

advanced devolution deals. This means the main focus for us is to find out from the early devolution areas (e.g. 

Greater Manchester, West of England) what is working, pitfalls to avoid, etc. as part of the longer-term goal is for 

the GESB to take on responsibility for determining how the AEB will be spent in the county. 

As Sara-Jane Watkins is working within the West of England Combined Authority area, she has agreed to update 

the GESB members about factors to consider when planning for the devolution of the Adult Education Budget to a 

locality. This will be included in GESB meetings so that emerging factors and actions can be considered. 

 

Pete Carr 

March 2018 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Theme

Source and or Date of last 

figures/comments England Gloucestershire

1 Apprenticeships

https://www.gov.uk/government/

statistical-data-sets/fe-data-library-

apprenticeships#apprenticeship-

starts-and-achievements

Aug 2016-Oct 

2017

Aug 2016-Oct 

2017

1

Apprenticeships - number of starts by 

Intermediate level

19 35600 450

19-24 21800 220

25+ 25300 230

All 82700 900

Apprenticeships - number of starts by 

Advanced level

19 20700 300

19-24 20200 290

25+ 20700 160

All 61600 750

Apprenticeships - number of starts by 

Higher level

19 1100 10

19-24 2600 40

25+ 5300 50

All 9000 100

1

Apprenticeships - number of 

completions by Intermediate level

19

19-24

25+

All

Apprenticeships - number of 

completions by Advanced level

19

19-24

25+

All

Apprenticeships - number of 

completions by Higher level

19

19-24

25+

All

1 Degree Apprenticeship starts Not measured yet

1

Apprenticeships - number of businesses 

advertising apprenticeships 

opportunities

Burning Glass, 2017 keywords: 

2017, Gloucestershire, Apprentice 1262

2 Ageing workforce

2 Total population in Gloucestershire Nomis 2016 623100

2 All people aged 16-64 in Gloucestershire Nomis 2016 381900

2

Number of people over 50, resident in 

the county ONS/NOMIS Sept 2017 118300

2

Ageing workforce - number of 

businesses with schemes in place to 

retain older workers

Will be available from the Business 

skills survey

Page 21



2

Ageing workforce - number of 

businesses with programmes in place to 

transfer knowledge and skills from older 

workers

Will be available from the Business 

skills survey

3

Stronger links between schools and 

businesses

3

Number of state secondary schools 

(total 32) matched with Enterprise 

Advisers Rob Jenkins March 2018 17

3

Number of careers teachers/leads with a 

careers strategy in place

Guidance only just issued to 

schools TBC

3

Number of schools and colleges offering 

work experience to students This requires a further survey TBC

3

Number of schools with links to business 

(through Govenors or other means) This requires a further survey TBC

4 Claimant count

4

Total claimant count - includes UC full 

service claimants who are out of work 

and who DWP requite to be available for 

and actively seeking work

GCC/ONS 

https://inform.gloucestershire.gov.

uk/viewpage.aspx?c=page&page=E

conomy-

UnemploymentBulletins&cookieCh

eck=true&JScript=1 711575 (2.0%) 4280 (1.1%)

4 of which 18-24 claimants DWP to confirm

4 of which 50 + and over claimants DWP to confirm

5 Other benefits

5 Employment and support allowance DWP to confirm

5

Incapacity benefit/severe disability 

allowance DWP to confirm

5 Income support DWP to confirm

6 Other measures for consideration

6

Exclusion rates (number in secondary 

schools 2015/16)

https://www.gov.uk/government/s

tatistics/permanent-and-fixed-

period-exclusions-in-england-2015-

to-2016 102

6 % claiming Free School meals

2013/14 

https://www.gov.uk/government/u

ploads/system/uploads/attachmen

t_data/file/543126/SFR37-2016_-

_WPHE2016_01.08.2016.pdf Not available 7%

6

% claiming Free School meals and 

progressing to HE

2013/14 

https://www.gov.uk/government/u

ploads/system/uploads/attachmen

t_data/file/543126/SFR37-2016_-

_WPHE2016_01.08.2016.pdf 22% 10%

6 Top 10 skills advertised Burning Glass 2017

6 Top 10 job titles advertised Burning Glass 2017

6 Number of jobs advertised 2016 Burning Glass 80235

6 Number of jobs advertised 2017 Burning Glass 102227

6

Number of Gloucestershire residents in 

HE HESA

6 Redundancy figures

Hoping DWP will be able to provide 

these

6 Offending rates

Hoping DWP will be able to provide 

these

Page 22



6

Towards 1 million disabled people into 

work

Hoping DWP will be able to provide 

these

6

% point gap in employment rate 

between those with a long term 

health condition and the overall 

employment rate

Hoping DWP will be able to 

provide these

6 Number of Looked after children

Hoping GCC will be able to provide 

these

6 Number of NEET

Hoping DWP will be able to provide 

these

6 Number of BME in employment

Hoping DWP will be able to provide 

these

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting on 17 January 2018
	4 Action log
	GESB Priorities and Proposed Actions - March 2018
	Dashboard - April 2018


